


  
 
 
 

Office of Inspector General 
Investigative Report 

Case Number 170221-01 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
On February 21, 2017, the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (Florida Housing) Office of Inspector General (OIG) 
received an email from Nicole Gibson, Assistant Director of Homeownership Programs, who reported the 
following about Marcel Louidort, Hardest Hit Fund (HHF) Program recipient: 
 

It appears that this applicant is altering his bank statements, especially the statement from TD 
Bank. You can see at least 2 different fonts and font sizes, plus the original asset TD Bank 
statement appears to have the exact same electronic payments (same amount and same vendor) 
as the most recent QT [Quarterly Touch] attached.  It appears that this has been going on since 
the beginning but no one found the discrepancies.  The ID is .  He is currently funded and 
receiving payments.  Let me know if we should suspend monthly payments during the review.   

 
Ms. Gibson also provided the documents Mr. Louidort submitted to his HHF Advisor, which contained the bank 
statements in question (Exhibit 1).  A quick review of these bank statements confirmed the irregularities.  
Therefore, the OIG initiated an investigation based on the allegation provided; and his payments were suspended 
on February 21, 2017, pending the results of the investigation. 
 

ALLEGATIONS 
 
It is alleged Marcel Louidort provided falsified documents and made false statements/certifications on his HHF 
Program application and his QTs involving, but not limited to his TD Bank account records, in order to be found 
eligible to receive payments from HHF Program funds.     
 
If supported, these allegations would constitute a violation of federal and/or state laws, including: 

 Title 18, United States Code, §1001, False Statements; 

 Section 817.03, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Making false statement to obtain property or credit; 

 Section 817.545, F.S., Mortgage Fraud; and/or 

 Section 837.06, F.S., False Official Statements.   
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
From February 21, 2017 to April 27, 2017, OIG staff conducted interviews and reviewed significant documentation 
related to the allegations.   
 
As a result of the investigation, OIG staff determined that the allegation of Marcel Louidort providing falsified 
documents and making false statements/certifications on his HHF Program application and QTs involving, but not 
limited to his TD Bank account statements, in order to be found eligible to receive payments from HHF Program 
funds was Supported.  In addition, OIG staff determined that Mr. Louidort made false statements/certifications 
during his QTs by:  not providing bank statements from his Navy Federal Credit Union (CU) checking accounts as 
proof of deposits ;  

 in Hardship Letters dated November 12, 2016 and February 14, 2017; and by not 
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notifying his HHF Advisor of his employment with and/or separation from employment with Kathleen Van 
Wieringen, which began on July 9, 2016.  
 

COMPLAINANT INTERVIEW 
 
Although Ms. Gibson reported the complaint to the OIG, she had been notified of the possible issue by Maria 
Gaitan, Director of Housing Counseling, Consolidated Credit Solutions, Incorporated, the HHF Advising Agency.  
Specifically, in an email dated February 15, 2017, Ms. Gaitan requested Ms. Gibson contact her and she forwarded 
an email from Emanuel Mishaikoff, Housing Administrative Support Specialist, in which he stated: 
 

It is unfortunate that I have to bring this to your attention, but it is my duty to notify you of 
suspected fraud against the Florida Hardest Hit Fund program. I recently received the attached 
QT documents from client Marcel Louidort. Upon review, I noticed the bank statement looked 
like it was tampered with. The date range of the statement is from December 26, 2017 [sic] – 
January 25, 2017 and the balances do not add up. I checked the Initial and the second QTs (also 
attached) and the bank statements are nearly identical. The fonts on the statement also are 
clearly different. The Florida HHF website gives instructions on how to report suspected fraud. 
Please let me know how you would like me to proceed. 
 

Therefore, On March 7, 2017, OIG staff conducted a recorded telephone interview of Mr. Mishaikoff and Ms. 
Gaitan, who both had knowledge of the questionable documents provided by Mr. Louidort. 
 
During the interview, Mr. Mishaikoff stated the following (paraphrased):    
 

 He was not Mr. Louidort’s original HHF advisor and had not processed his original HHF Program 
application; 

 As required by the HHF Program funding, Mr. Louidort emailed the required documents as part of his QTs 
to their agency; 

 When he reviewed the documents provided by Mr. Louidort for the last QT, he noticed the following 
about the TD Bank statement: 
o The date range was December 2107 [sic] to January 2017; 
o The “fonts looked off”; 
o The account balance information was “very strange,” with a beginning balance of zero, one deposit 

of $550, but an ending balance of $1,308.02;  
o When he compared this bank statement to other ones Mr. Louidort provided in earlier QTs, he noticed 

that the statements were “almost identical, except for the dates”;  
o He banks at TD Bank, knows the fonts, and how his own statement looks; and 
o Since he felt “it was fishy,” he reported it to his supervisor Ms. Gaitan. 

 
Note:  Mr. Mishaikoff was aware that Mr. Louidort said his reason for his hardship was due to unemployment, 
after being laid off from Bank of America due to restructuring.    

 
During the interview, Ms. Gaitan stated the following (paraphrased):    
 

 Regarding the letter Mr. Louidort provided with a signature for a Veronica Acevedo, Assistant Store 
Manager, TD Bank, she said, “It looked like it was totally made-up”: 
o It was addressed to “To whom it may concern”; 
o It was “horribly written”; 
o It did not appear to be on “official TD Bank letterhead”; but 
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HHF Program Loan Documents 
On August 25, 2016, Mr. Louidort signed the HHF Program Loan documents (Exhibit 3), certifying: 

 As stated on the HHF Approval Letter: 
 

. . . Your signature means that you agree to fulfill your obligations under the Florida Hardest 
Hit Fund, and if you do not fulfill those obligations, your participation and eligibility for 
assistance under the program(s) described above may be terminated.  In addition, if at any 
time it is determined that you provided inaccurate or false information, or withheld 
information, in making application for assistance under the Florida Hardest Hit Fund, or if 
you fail to notify Florida Housing of events that would disqualify or render you ineligible for 
further assistance under the program(s) described above, your participation in the 
program(s) will be automatically terminated.   

 

 On the Promissory Note, the property address was listed as 306 Belmont Place, and Mr. Louidort 
acknowledged the following (emphasis added): 

 
Item 7. DEFAULT 
Default. I will be in default under their Note if: (i) I do not repay the HHF Loan as required in 
section 4 above; (ii) I submit incomplete, false or misleading information to the Lender, or 
anyone acting on Lender's behalf, before or after the approval of their HHF Loan; or (iii) I fail to 
provide to the Lender, or to anyone acting on Lender’s behalf, on a timely basis any information 
required by the Lender in order for the Lender to monitor my continuing compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Note.  At the Lenders’ option, I may be declared in default if I fail 
to comply with any of the terms and conditions in the Loan Documents or in the HHF Approval 
Letter issued to me in connection with the HHF Loan.  If I am in default, the Lender may, its 
option, enforce this Note by any lawful means and require me to pay the Lender’s costs and 
expenses as described in (D) below. . . 
 
Item 11.  RESPONSIBILITY OF PERSONS UNDER THIS NOTE 
If more than one person signs this Note, each of us is fully and personally obligated (jointly and 
severally) to pay the full amount owed and to keep all of the promises made in this Note. The 
Lender may enforce its rights under this Note against each of us individually or against all of us 
together and may enforce its rights against any of us in any order. This means that any one of us 
may be required to pay all of the amounts owed under this Note. Notwithstanding the terms and 
conditions in this section 11, the personal liability of any Borrower is limited in the manner and to 
the extent as provided in section 12 below.     

 
Item 12.  LIMITS ON PERSONAL LIABILITY 
(B) The Borrower shall be personally liable to the Lender for the full repayment of the 
indebtedness evidenced by this Note if the indebtedness, or any portion of the indebtedness, 
is obtained or created as a result of fraud or misrepresentation, including the submission of 
false, misleading or incomplete information, by the Borrower in connection with the application 
for or creation of the indebtedness or in connection with any advance or disbursement of the 
indebtedness made by the Lender on Borrower's behalf during the term of this Note. 

 

 The Rider to Promissory Note states (emphasis added): 
 
Item D.  Conditions to Lender's Agreement to advance HHF Loan Proceeds. In addition to the 
conditions described in C.l.(b) above, The Lender's agreement to advance the HHF Loan proceeds 
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under C. above is subject to and conditioned upon the following: (i) The Borrower must occupy 
the Property at all times as the Borrower's primary residence; (ii) the Borrower must continue to 
suffer financial hardship in the form of unemployment, underemployment, or reduced income 
from self-employment such that the Borrower lacks sufficient income to resume making the 
monthly mortgage payments required under the Borrower’s First Mortgage Loan or to reinstate 
the loan; (iii) the Borrower must provide to the Lender of to the Borrower’s assigned HHF 
advisor on a quarterly basis documentation and evidence necessary to demonstrate that the 
Borrower continues to suffer financial hardship. . .  

 

 On the Subordinate Mortgage, the property address was listed as 306 Belmont Place, and Mr. Louidort 
acknowledged the following (emphasis added): 
 
PROVIDED ALWAYS that if Borrower shall pay to Lender, all sums due or to become due under 
the Note or this Mortgage and shall perform, comply with, and abide by each and every 
stipulation, agreement, condition, and covenant of the Note and of this Mortgage. . . 
 
Item 15.  Acceleration; Remedies. Upon the Borrower's breach of any covenant or agreement 
of the Borrower in this Mortgage, including the covenants to pay when due any sums secured by 
this Mortgage, or in the event that the Borrower shall have made a material misrepresentation or 
material omission in Borrower's application for the loan evidenced by the Note, Lender, may 
declare all of the sums secured by this Mortgage to be immediately due and payable without 
further demand and may foreclose this Mortgage by judicial proceeding. . .and 
Item 20.  Special Provisions:  
(a)  Default.  In addition to any other event of default under this Mortgage, the Borrower will be 
in default if any of the following occur: (i) if Borrower submits incomplete, false or misleading 
information to the Lender before or after the approval of the Loan; (ii) if Borrower violates any 
terms and conditions of the Note, the terms and conditions of which are incorporated herein 
by reference, or any other loan document governing the Loan. . . (iii) if Borrower fails to provide 
to the Lender on a timely basis any information required by the Lender in order for the Lender 
to monitor Borrower’s continuing compliance with the terms and conditions of the Loan. 

 
HHF Program Funding and QTs 
Between September 1, 2016 and February 1, 2017, Mr. Louidort’s mortgage lender received HHF Program funding 
on his behalf, which consisted of: 

 One Mortgage Loan Reinstatement Program (MLRP) payment of 1,187.21 on September 8, 2016; and 

 Six months of payments from the Unemployment Mortgage Assistance Program (UMAP) totaling 
$7,123.26.   

During that time, Mr. Louidort provided information and explanations to his HHF Advisor for the closing of his HHF 
Program loan and as required for his QTs.  As part of three QTs, Mr. Louidort provided his HHF Advisor with the 
following information: 

 In Hardship Letters dated November 12, 2016, and February 14, 2017 (Exhibit 4), Mr. Louidort reported 
that he was still unemployed ; 

 He also provided statements from the following banks: 
o Bank of America (BOA), checking account number:  ; and savings account number:  

 (Exhibit 5), with Pod Herve Louidort also listed on the account; 
o Navy Federal CU, mortgage account number  (Exhibit 6); and 
o TD Bank, primary account number:   (see Exhibit 1), for the following dates:   

 May 17, 2016 – May 25, 2016; 
 September 17, 2016 – October 25, 2016; and 
 December 26, 2017 [sic] – January 25, 2017. 
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SUBJECT INTERVIEWS 
 
In a recorded telephone interview with OIG staff on March 31, 2017, Mr. Louidort stated the following 
(paraphrased):  
 

 He believed he started to apply for HHF Program funds in April or May 2016; 

 He submitted the documents to his HHF Advisor via email and facsimile; 

 When asked whether TD Bank was his primary bank for his savings and checking account he said, “yes” 
and he acknowledged that he had opened the account on May 17, 2016; 

 When asked whether it would be helpful to email the TD Bank statements in question to him for his review 
and response, he said “It would be, but I don’t have access to a computer right now”; 

 When told that in comparison of the three statements, the statements have the different dates, but the 
content of the statements was almost identical, he said: 
 

I don’t know truthfully, because those were [sic], I requested them from the bank and 
they were faxed over.  So, I’m not sure.  Maybe that could be a factor.  I’m not sure.  Yah, 
so I’m not sure. 
 

 When informed that some of the TD Bank statements appeared to be Adobe files, with some in 
color, and that the statements did not have marks from a fax machine, he did not provide a 
response; 

 When asked whether the information could be faxed to him, he said “Yah,” but then said, “I don’t 
have that fax with me.  Ah, can you email it to me?  I’ll reply to your email later on today.” 

 When asked about the additional name of Pod Herve Louidort, listed on the Bank of America 
statements he provided to his HHF Advisor, he said that is his brother, who is the “beneficiary”; 

 He said the Navy Federal CU account is for his mortgage; 

 He was informed that his HHF Program benefits had been suspended after the irregularities were 
discovered with his bank statements;  

 He believed the last HHF Program payment he received was in February; and  

 He said he would respond to the email about the bank statements, and was given the option to 
call back or to provide a response via email. 

 
In an email dated March 31, 2017, Mr. Louidort was provided the bank statements, along with details of 
some of the irregularities found.  He was asked to review the information and provide a response.  Mr. 
Louidort responded via email on April 3, 2017, in which he stated, “I'm looking at what you sent me and 
I'm not sure how to explain since I'm not an expert bank statements. I'm not sure if these things happened 
during scanning or printing process.” 
 

RESPONSE FROM TD BANK AND DEO 
 
In order to verify the authenticity of the records Mr. Louidort provided to the HHF Advising Agency, OIG staff 
contacted the:   

 TD Bank location listed on the letter he provided, with the TD Bank statements (see Exhibit 1); and  

 DEO, OIG, with details listed below:  
    

TD Bank, Lake Worth, FL 

 On April 5, 2017, OIG staff: 
o Called the telephone number listed on the letter Mr. Louidort provided and requested to speak with 

Veronica Acevedo, Assistant Manager, who was listed as the author of the letter, with a signature; 
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FINDINGS/CONCLUSIONS 
 
It is alleged Marcel Louidort provided falsified documents and made false statements/certifications on his HHF 
Program application and QTs involving, but not limited to his TD Bank account records, in order to be found eligible 
to receive payments from HHF Program funds.  The allegation was Supported by: 

 The TD Bank statements:  
o Ms. Gibson, Mr. Mishaikoff and Ms. Gaitan, reviewed them and believed they had been altered; and 
o Ms. Acevedo confirmed that she did not author or sign the letter Mr. Louidort provided with the 

statements.  

 The DEO records, which showed that Mr. Louidort: 
o  

  
  

  
o Started to work for Ms. Van Wieringen the week ending July 9, 2016. 

 
In addition, the HHF Program documents,  show that Mr. Louidort made false 
statements/certifications during his HHF Program application process and QTs when he:   

  
  

  
   

 

  
 and 

 Failed to notify his HHF Advisor of his employment and/or separation from employment with Kathleen 
Van Wieringen, which began on July 9, 2016. 

 
Note:  It is unclear whether Mr. Louidort received any unreported income from his advertisement as a tax preparer 
or of his employment status as an insurance agent.     
 
In accordance with §20.055(7)(c), F.S, on May 11, 2017, this investigation was coordinated with the Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) and the Office of the Special Inspector General for Troubled Asset Relief 
Program (SIGTARP) for possible violations of federal and/or state laws, including: 

 Title 18, United States Code, §1001, False Statements; 

 Section 817.03, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Making false statement to obtain property or credit; 

 Section 817.545, F.S., Mortgage Fraud; and/or 

 Section 837.06, F.S., False Official Statements.   
 

ADDITIONAL HHF PROGRAM MANAGER’S REVIEW 
 
In an email dated April 30, 2019, Ms. Gibson responded to a request from Vivian Vega, Special Agent, SIGTARP, 
who provided additional information regarding Mr. Louidort’s income and bank statements that he had not 
provide as part of his HHF application and/or QT reviews.  As Ms. Gibson explained in the email, Agent Vega 
requested a review of the documents for program compliance and a written summary for FDLE and the State 
Attorney.  Ms. Gibson’s summary is listed below, with details pertaining to Mr. Louidort’s eligibility highlighted in 
yellow: 

                                                           
4 This date was during the time , but all payments were made to his Navy Federal CU checking 
accounts. 
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